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Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited
Director, Brian Burkholder
KY1-1104
309

P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands

03 6775 1000

Credit Suisse Universal Trust Cayman

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund

10 1,327

1,000

2022 12 30
132.70
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113,333
13,524
73,738
96,159
8,013

2022 31 61,992

2023
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2022 12
3,021,229.19 65.94
422,673.86 9.23
330,685.53 7.22
251,583.63 5.49
106,515.62 2.32
4,132,687.83 90.20
448,976.16 9.80
4,581,663.99
( 607,986,811 100.00
2022 12
()

430,072,475 65.94
60,167,694 9.23
47,073,139 7.22
35,812,971 5.49
15,162,516 2.32

588,288,795 90.20
63,911,832 9.80

652,200,627 100.00
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2022 12
IAZZURRO RE 1 6.216
2027/1/5 | 2,500 | 113.18] 282,937.62 105.38 263,445.64 .8%
05JAN27 144A FRN
ORANGE CAPIT 4.628
2025/1/17] 2,500 | 114.11 285,281.38] 103.82] 259,561.47, LT%
17JAN25 144A FRN
ISTRATOSPHERE R 0.0
2026/2/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 99.40] 248,492.12 .6%
07FEB26 144A FRN
BOWLINE RE LTD 0.0
2023/3/20] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 98.80] 247,003.74 .6%
[20MAR23 144A FRN
SANDERS RE 11 0.0
2026/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 98.39 245,975.47 .6%
07JUN26 144A FRN
URSA RE 11 LTD 0.0
2027/12/7] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 97.98] 244,938.22 .6%
07DEC27 144A FRN
NORTHSHORE RE 0.0
2026/7/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 97.61 244,013.12 .6%
07JUL26 144A FRN
LA VIE RE LT 6.81914
2024/10/6] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 97.35 243,386.99 .6%
060CT24 144A F
ISUTTER RE LTD 0.0
2027/5/241 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 97.09] 242,714.90 .5%
[24MAY27 144A FRN
ICATAHOULA 11 R 0.0
10 2025/6/16 | 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00f 95.20f 238,002.81 .5%
16JUN25 144A FRN
ICAPE LOOKOUT R 0.0
11 2029/3/28] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 95.08] 237,704.60] .5%
[28MAR29 144A FRN
SIERRA LTD 0.0 31JAN25
12 2025/1/31] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 95.06] 237,658.17] .5%
144A FRN
ALAMO RE LTD 0.0
13 2028/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 94.69 236,722.72 .5%
07JUN28 144A FRN
TORREY PINES R 0.0
14 2029/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 94.65 236,633.56 .5%
07JUN29 144A FRN
MERNA RE 11 LT 0.0
15 2025/7/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 94.36] 235,887.50 .5%
07JUL25 144A FRN
FOUR LAKES RE 0.0
16 2027/1/5 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 93.95 234,882.12 .5%
05JAN27 144A FRN
BALDWIN RE LTD 0.0
17 2028/7/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 93.69 234,219.41 5%
07JUL28 144A FRN
FLOODSMART RE 0.0
18 2025/2/25] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 93.12] 232,812.50] 4%
[25FEB25 144A FRN
ITALITY RE XI 0.0
19 2026/1/6 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 92.97| 232,428.34 4%
06JAN26 144A FRN
ISANDERS RE 111 0.0
20 2029/4/9 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 92.67| 231,668.08 4%
09APR29 144A FRN
KENDALL RE LTD 0.0
21 2028/5/2 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 91.09 227,725.06 4%
02MAY28 144A FRN
HERBIE RE LTD 0.0
22 2025/1/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 90.30] 225,752.95 4%
08JAN25 144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0
23 2028/12/6] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 88.88 222,207.3Y 3%
06DEC28 144A FRN
ISUSSEX CAP UK 0.0
24 2028/1/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 88.57| 221,431.05 3%
08JAN28 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 11 0.0
25 2028/4/21] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 87.64) 219,107.46 .3%
[21APR28 144A FRN
TAILWIND RE LT 0.0
26 2028/4/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 87.24 218,091.60

07APR28 144A FRN

.3ﬂ
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[TITANIA RE LTD 0.0

27 2024/12/27] 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 86.12] 215,297.60] 2.3%
[27DEC24 144A FRN
MONA LISA RE L 0.0

28 2028/7/10] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 86.11 215,283.50] 2.3%
10JUL28 144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0

29 2029/6/26 | 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 85.57] 213,934.38 2.2%
[26JUN29 144A FRN
FIRST COAST RE 0.0

30 2027/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 85.13 212,812.50 2.2%
07JUN27 144A FRN 1

2022 12

2022 12
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2022
2022 12

2018 32,797,257.03 4,352,196.01 9.98 1,324
2019 23,355,259.10 3,099,242.88 10.07 1,336

11,052,438.52 1,466,658.59 10.41 1,381
2020

8,307,058.10 1,102,346.61 10.56 1,401
2021

5,134,655.55 681,368.79 10.61 1,408
2022
2022 7,892,325.72 1,047,311.62 10.57 1,403
2022 7,983,009.50 1,059,345.36 10.56 1,401
2022 7,913,682.96 1,050,145.73 10.47 1,389
2022 7,827,143.38 1,038,661.93 10.50 1,393
2022 7,699,453.54 1,021,717.49 10.49 1,392
2022 7,666,339.98 1,017,323.32 10.39 1,379
2022 6,105,320.17 810,175.99 10.40 1,380
2022 5,134,655.55 681,368.79 10.61 1,408
2022 4,678,087.70 620,782.24 9.66 1,282
2022 10 4,671,447.15 619,901.04 9.60 1,274
2022 11 4,561,673.36 605,334.06 9.82 1,303
2022 12 4,581,663.99 607,986.81 9.86 1,308
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2018 2,674,545,379 9,780
2019 2,119,499,313 9,626
2020 1,807,585,704 9,825
2021 1,174,108,653 10,158
2022 839,989,033 10,088
2022 1,063,819,713 10,146
2022 1,062,581,993 10,134
2022 1,009,035,536 10,058
2022 1,010,817,734 10,076
2022 956,582,284 10,056
2022 951,501,961 9,953
2022 872,035,473 9,936
2022 839,989,033 10,088
2022 722,638,750 9,177
2022 10 691,897,812 9,001
2022 11 657,835,521 9,265
2022 12 652,200,627 9,264
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2018 2022 10
2018
2018 10 0.05 6.64 20
2019 0.02 2.65
2019 10 0.01 1.33
2020 0.04 5.31
2020 10 0.30 39.81 80
2021
2021 10 0.20 26.54 200
2022 0.15 19.91 130
2022 10 0.13 17.25 30
2017 28 2022 10 0-90 1943 460
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2017 28 2022

2017 28 2018 0.20 2.20

1.60 1.37
2018 2019

3.87 2.07
2019 2020

4.32 4.20
2020 2021

3.79 2.56
2021 2022

100x% +

2017 28 2017 12 29 2.70 2.94
2018 2018 12 31 2.57 0.29
2019 2019 12 31 4.43 1.40
2020 2020 12 31 3.00 2.25
2021 2021 12 31 4.17 3.84
2022 2022 12 31 3.80 6.82

100x% +

2017
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<HKFI (F2E) 752> <M (F2E) 752>
(B2 (201 FESA 28R ~20224E3/A=8) (EEB (20 FESA 288 ~20224E 3R FE)
= 30 FFAMER) 1) =)
120 _ 18 10800 e 120
TS O ) A |2 10,3000 — i DuruRARERS — =
1.0 11— SeE g AN Ew | = h___..--" 7 12 IG.]DD-'._ HEE AR — L
105 JW o | 9,900 = Bl
9.5 3 9,300 20
Bl 9,000 0
017E MeE BT \3E 015G MG s WG N0 BNS NNE e J'H-'E H}ﬁ 3.'.3'95 32'155 i‘iiﬁm ?Jl‘ﬁ E‘-:I?'ﬂ IGEE EFJ.!:E
SRIEA A58 HARE 3296 IA306 3 WA NG WS NS A8 SR FURE W AAKE I0E T1E I8 35S Y606 RNE RXE
(FI3ERBIFSRFO DS oUSRESEE. BICEROTEQICH SR Zhoncens LTHESNTLET . LU TEUTY.
IR DR
<KPFL(F2@E) 75 2> <MA(§F2E) 752>
6% 5%
45 257 Ei 3.00 4;1.? 4% 2 ?5 33'1
1 140 =
~  § M om N N —— i
2% 2| -
A% =270 C380 A% —2.94
6%~ £
o INTE 2018 201E  J0NAE  C20NE 202ME G 2MME JBE MNE mgiﬂ:l_
Gy Eiy Gt S e e o) (e hseon w}?,,fa}(r“‘f'" E"é'f@" S
(5) A (%) =100= (a—-b}+b
a=BEXRO O oRR R e+ S EEN O SEE0S
b= EEORMORECD | D4 OMREEE
2u | FEONRES . B | DL i R T s
2017 28 2022 31
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
2017 28
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
2018 31
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
2018 79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
2019 31
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
17,869.393 1,281,074.577 1,056,755.478
2019 (17,869.393) (1,281,074.577) (1,056,755.478)
1
0 37,125.626 183,065.051
2020 31
0 (37,125.626) (183,065.051)
9,699.321 279,555.875 786,898.924
2020 9,699.321 279,555.875 786,898.924
0 67,484.648 115,580.403
2021 31
0 67,484.648 115,580.403
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9,460.738 312,289.839 484,069.823
2021 9,460.738 312,289.839 484,069.823

2,435.724 34,748.375 83,267.752
2022 31

2,435.724 34,748.375 83,267.752
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1933
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100,000 0.01

10,000,000

« KUBORERRICIVEABEDOHEOBLE TENEL, EREONTHEEELLEY
AR REUCBSICE AEEA - RS @RV OBHAHOPIEEUIBCE RS
e B (BRU)DOSBABZRMHT LN BUET .

* BBPARIAZVTICKVEEOREVIC2HBEENNUET .

HREEARDEA WA -IEeABROEFA
S DEREED :

(o DEE_|#|s
(@) DE || =

(W] DHZEE [#|w

(o] MR [=

AR B )

H[7rFEERD &R BRIESAEIE. Za—3— RS R O R SRS IRE LU 75970 E SN IR OTERE (B> T L a8 T
HRBAY _1-S-POERNTHERLTOSETREESUERBERFE T ) BSUL R A RC DLW T ER S HA RN
EFa &M TEHE5F0EOESLFEFOEDERCHITSEREBEONET.

#FEClE . BEORSEHRHELVWEY. IMABIEE. a3 7R BNS RS I BT TLaR T 22— 3—70Ee T res
LTLEB(THEsLUEROERESE Y, ). BLF R IR oL T RS TR T A A R ST OB ELLET.

# (WS (E & SHOWmI 7 r /P EER LT R I L RSN I A LW T RSt TR R E T 2O &M TESTOMD
HELWLET,

BEMANERILR. BAZERASMEL O ORI EESCHIT AR HELLEBER. 5 B0 EEREREELWET.

[PPSR Al W - 188 (ML) & BICEME e B AN L T4 S RO EOEEL L ET. A E S ErEEO S ERL T AR RRE

SETCHARSS AT R T 550 LE T AE (EEL OERSREMNTEESERLTENEREENS, RS SRR E
TR R T L NEY.
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2022 10,000,000

2163 12
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22
38 59 131

23 103

2022 12 30
132.70
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CAT
2022 31
2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
uSD uSD
420,302 55,774 625,113 82,952
2022 USD 12,724,623
2021 USD 19,907,356 4,5,7 10,877,814 1,443,486 18,225,145 2,418,477
4,5 8,152 1,082 46,328 6,148
142,229 18,874 183,688 24,375
3,343 444
11,448,497 1,519,216 19,083,617 2,532,396
4,5 177,061 23,496 7,722 1,025
8 77,346 10,264 81,520 10,818
254,407 33,760 89,242 11,842
11,194,090 1,485,456 18,994,375 2,520,554
usb usD
JPY 839,989,033 1,174,108,653
usD 6,059,434 10,687,317
USD 5,134,656 681,368,851 8,307,058  1,102,346,597
7 83,268 115,580
7 484,070 786,899
usD usD
JPY 10,088 10,158
usD 1 1,460 11 1,460

2022 12 16
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CAT
2022 31
2022 31
2022 31 2021
UsD usd
FVTPL
1
6 1,047,595 139,016 1,372,337 182,109
6 (253,871) (33,689) 6,623 879
6 (1,851,481) (245,692) 109,741 14,563
(1,057,757) (140, 364) 1,488,701 197,551
846 112 97 13
2 15,869 2,106 (555,917) (73,770)
« ) (1,041,042) (138,146) 932,881 123,793
421 56 5 1
8 113,333 15,039 151,499 20,104
73,738 9,785 73,736 9,785
8 10,001 1,327 9,990 1,326
13,524 1,795 13,640 1,810
8 19,426 2,578 25,977 3,447
96,159 12,760 127,398 16,906
8,013 1,063 10,823 1,436
61,992 8,226 149,292 19,811
396,607 52,630 562,360 74,625
(1,437,649) (190,776) 370,521 49,168
577,440 76,626 429,714 57,023
(2,015,089) (267,402) (59,193) (7,855)
@ FVTPL
FVIPL
@

721214



2020

2021

2022

31

31

31
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CAT
2022 31
usD
28,097,898 3,728,591
100,000 13,270
(9,144,330) (1,213,453)
(59,193) (7.855)
18,994,375 2,520,554
280,090 37,168
(6,065,286) (804,863)
(2,015,089) (267,402)
11,194,090 1,485,456




2022
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CAT
2022 31
31
2022 31 2021
usD usD
(2,015,089) (267,402) (59,193) (7,855)
(3,534,305) (469,002) (6,773,742) (898,876)
10,627,804 1,410,310 14,041,084 1,863,252
89,234 11,841 1,005,218 133,392
164,637 21,847 (1,011,841) (134,271)
207,515 27,537 (165,000) (21,89)
39 ®)

3,343 444 (10) @
4,174) (554) (33,330) (4,423)
41,459 5,502 71,870 9,537

5,580,385 740,517 7,075,056 938,860
280,090 37,168 100,000 13,270
(6,065, 286) (804,863) (9,144,330) (1,213,453)
(5,785,196) (767,696) (9,044,330) (1,200,183)
(204,811) (27,178) (1,969,274) (261,323)
625,113 82,952 2,594,387 344,275
420,302 55,774 625,113 82,952
1,092,368 144,957 1,420,715 188,529
(421) (56) ) @

741214
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CAT
2022 31
CAT
2013 12 2021 74
2013 12 2021
2017 15 2017 28
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
CAT
CAT
CAT CAT

CAT CAT

NDF

26

USA
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IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 10 IFRS 12
2017 15

usD
usb
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CAT
2022 31
IAS 27 2012
usb



FVTPL
FVTPL

SPP1
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CAT

2022 31

2021

IFRS
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CAT

2022 31

FVTPL

SPPI

FVPL
FVPL

FVPL

SPP1

SPPI

781214
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CAT

2022 31
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CAT

2022 31



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT
2022 31
CAT CAT 4
Swiss Re Capital Markets Aon Securities Inc.
Willis Towers Watson Securities GC Securities CAT
5
IFRS
ECL
2022 31 ECL

IFRS

81/214
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CAT

2022 31



FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

IAS 32
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CAT

2022 31



50

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT
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CAT

2022 31



CAT

CAT
CAT

SPV

usD

JPY

CAT

CAT
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CAT
2022 31
CAT
CAT
SPV
usb
JPY

CAT



CAT

31

2022 31
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CAT
2022 31
CAT
2022 31 2021
usD
247,497 2.28
500,299 4.60
8,163,945 75.05
1,227,524 11.28
738,549 6.79

10,877,814 100.00
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CAT
2022 31
2021 31

usD
1,016,640 5.58
891,051 4.89
14,069,868 77.20
1,491,874 8.18
502,800 2.76
252,912 1.39
18,225,145 100.00

CAT
CAT
2022 31

usD
5,379,294 49.45
1,734,764 15.95
472,125 4.34
739,575 6.80
2,552,056 23.46

10,877,814 100.00
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CAT
2022 31
2021 31
USD
10,702,301 58.72
3,604,446 19.78
486,978 2.67
990,691 5.44
2,191,648 12.02
249,081 1.37
18,225,145 100.00
CAT
CAT
10
35
VaR
2022 31 VaR 4,214,762 2021
6,112,647 100
CAT
CAT
2022 31

10 35 2021
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CAT
2022 31
2022 31

usD usD usD usD usD usD
6,859,112 4,018,702 10,877,814
8,152 8,152
142,229 142,229
420,302 420,302
7,279,414 4,018,702 150,381 11,448,497
177,061 177,061
77,346 77,346
254,407 254,407
7,279,414 4,018,702 (104,026) 11,194,090

2021 31

usD usD usb usb usb usD
10,873,737 7,351,408 18,225,145
46,328 46,328
183,688 183,688
3,343 3,343
625,113 625,113
11,498,850 7,351,408 233,359 19,083,617
7,722 7,722
81,520 81,520
89,242 89,242
11,498,850 7,351,408 144,117 18,994,375
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CAT
2022 31
25
25 bps 25 bps
usD usD
(2,719) 2,719
25 bps 25 bps
usD usD
(4,556) 4,556

0.1 2021 0.1
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CAT
2022 31
2022 31
2021 31
JPY EUR
2022 31 USD USD USD
490 109 599
500, 299 500,299
2,547 2,547
490 502,955 503,445
6,039,773 (503,270) 5,536,503
6,040,263 (315) 6,039,948
JPY EUR
2021 31 USD UsD UsD
2,565 4,207 6,772
1,189,107 1,189,107
9,450 9,450
2,565 1,202,764 1,205,329
10,668,857 (1,195,106) 9,473,751

10,671,422 7,658 10,679,080
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CAT

2022 31

2022 31
6,039,948 2021 10,679,080 2022 31

301,997 2021 533,954

CAT

CAT
CAT
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CAT
2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
2022 31
usD
420,302 Al
10,877,814 Al
8,152 Al
2021 31
usD
625,113 Al
18,225,145 Al

46,328 Al
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CAT

2022 31

2163 12 1

2022 10,000,000
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CAT
2022 31
3
31 2021 31
usD UsD usD UsD
10,877,814 10,877,814
8,152 8,152
10,885,966 10,885,966
(177,061) (177,061)

(177,061) (177,061)
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CAT
2022 31
usb USD usb uUsD
18,225,145 18,225,145
46,328 46,328
18,271,473 18,271,473
(7,722) (7,722)
(7,722) (7,722)
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT

CAT
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2021

2022

11

11

31

31

31
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CAT

2022 31
UsD UsD USD
8,152 (177,061) (168,909)
8,152 (177,061) (168,909)
usD usD USD
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
UsD UsD
8,152 503,270

(177,061) (6,039,773)
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CAT
2022 31
uSsD usD
46,328 1,171,670,000
(7,722) (1,281,000)

8,152

(8,152)

8,152

(8,152)

100/214



2021

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT
2022 31
(177,061) 8,152 (168,909)
(177,061) 8,152 (168,909)
31
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
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CAT
2022 31
(7,722) 7,722
(7.722) 7,722
2022 31 2021 31
USsD usD
1,047,595 1,372,337
(89,234) (1,005,218)
(164,637) 1,011,841
(1,643,966) (55,259)
(207,515) 165,000

(1,057,757) 1,488,701
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2020

2021

0.01

31

31

31
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CAT
2022 31
115,580.403 786,898.924
2,435.724 9,460.738
(34,748.375) (312,289.839)
83,267.752 484,069.823
183,065.051 1,056,755.478
9,699.321
(67,484.648) (279,555.875)
115,580.403 786,898.924
10,000
100,000
1,000
10,000,000 1

10.00 10,000
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CAT

2022 31



2022 31
2021 429,714

0.12

25,977
3,883

5,000
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CAT
2022 31
577,440
19,426 2021
2,769 2021



0.70
113,333 2021
16,152 2021
0.50
80,952 2021 108,214
11,537 2021 16,181
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151,499
22,653

usD
2022
26,890
16,152
11,041
6,658
6,436
3,398
2,769
2,039
1,427
536

CAT

2022

10,000

31

UsD
2021
23,977
22,653
5,520

19,417
1,699
3,883
2,039

714
1,618

77,346

81,520
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CAT

2022 31

2022 31 2022 12 16
1,032,017 79,249

2022 12 16
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Tokde Migrine CAT Rond Fuvid

Fimancial state panby
Amgust 11, 2022
Statement of financial position
August 31, 2022
Note August 31, 2022 Aungust 3, 2021
uUsD UsD
Assels
Cash 420,302 625113
Investment in debd instruments, & fair value
{cost: 2022: USD 12,724,623, 2021: USD19,907,354) 4,57 1,877,814 18,225,145
Dervative financial instruments, at fair value 4.5 8,152 46,328
Interest receivable 142,229 183,688
Other assets - 3,343
Total assets 11,448,497 19,083,617
Liabilities
Denvative financial instrments, af fair value 4.5 177061 T2
Accmed expenses b 77.346 81,520
Total liabilities (excluding net assets atiri butable to
the holders of redeemable units) 254,407 89,242
MNet assets atiributable to the holders of redeemalble
units 11,194,090 18,994,375
Met assets attributable 1o
TBY Semi-Anmual Distribution Class units (JPY) B39.989.033 1.174, 108,653
JPY Semi-Anmal Distribution Class units (U750 6,059,434 10,687,317
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (USD) 5,134,656 8,307,058
Units outstanding;
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units 7 83,268 115,580
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units 7 484,070 786,599
Met assel value per nmt:
JPY Semi-Annual Distrbution Class units (JPY) 10,088 10,158
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (L150D) 11 11
Approved on behalf of the Trustee on December 16, 2022
The accompenying notes form an imtegral pant of these finaneial statements. 4
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Tokde Migrine CAT Rond Fuvid

Fimancial state panty
Angust 21, 2022
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended August 31, 2022
For the year
For the vear ended ended
August 31, 2022 August 31, 2021
MNote UsD UsD
Revenue
Met (loss)/ income from financial ingmments at
FVTPL!
Interest income [ 1,047,595 1,372,337
Met (loss)/ gain on investments in delt instioments 6 {253.371) 6,623
Met (loss)/ gain on currency forwands derivatives [ {1,851 481) 109,741
{1.057,757) 1,488,701
Interesi on cash 246 97
Net exchange gain / (loss) on foreign currency
transactions’ 15,569 (555.917)
Total (1055} / revenue (1,041,042} 932,881
Interest expense 421 5
[mvestment Manager fees 8 113,333 151,499
Administration fees 73,738 73,736
Trustee fees 8 10,001 9,990
Custodian fees 13,524 13,640
Fee Agent fees 8 19,426 25,977
Dristributor fees 26,159 127,398
Agent member company fees 5013 10,823
Cther fees 61,992 149,292
Total eperating expenses 396,607 562,360
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units before distributions {1,437.649) 370,521
Distributions to holders of redeemable units 577,440 429,714
Changes in net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units after distributions (2015089} (59,193}

W This relates to net incomedoss from financial instrime nts measured af Fair Value Through Profit or
Lags (“FVTPL™ lncliding reclived arid iinreclived geirmdosses on_findancial asiels and Babifties ct
v value through profit or logs (et loss on Dvesiments i deld instruments and el gain on
derivertives), and inderest ncome.,

FE This relmtes fo realived and wwedlised goaindoss on _foreign currencies, spot foveign exclvmige
contracts ared receivables/pevables denominated in forelpn currencies.

The accompeanying notes form an imtegral pant of these finaneial statements. 5
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Tokde Migrine CAT Rond Fuvid

Fimancial state pxnby
Amgust 31, 2022
Statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders off
redeemable units
For the vear ended August 31, 2022
Total
USD
Balance at Aungunst 31, 2020 28,097,898
Issue of unils 1000, W) b
Repurchase of units 19, 144.330)
Change in net assets atnbutable to the holders of
redeemable units after distibutions (58,193)
Balance at August 31, 2021 18,994,375
Izzue of units 280,090
Repurchase of units (6,065,286)
Change in net assets attnibitable to the holders of
redeemable units after distribotions {2.,015089)
Balanee al August 31, 2022 11,154,090
The accompenying notes form an imtegral pant of these finaneial statements. 6
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Tokde Migrine CAT Rond Fuvid

Fiimaneial state nenty
Awmgust 31, 2022
Statement of cash flows
For the vear ended August 31, 2022
For the year For the year
ended ended
August 3, 2022 August 31, 2021
UsD UsSD
Operating activities
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units after
disinbutions (2,015,0859) (59,193)
Purchase of deld instruments (3.534,305) (6,773.742)
Proceeds from sale of debt instruments 10,627,804 14,04 1,084
Adjustment for items not involving cash:
Realized loss on debt instruments 89,234 1005218
Umnrealised loss / (gain} on deld instruments 164,637 (1,011.841)
Met unrealised loss / (gainy on denivatives M7, 515 {165,000
Amortization (39 -
Met changes in non-cash operating balances:
Oither assets 3,343 (10
Accred expenses (4,174} (33,330)
Interest receivable 41,459 71,870
Net cash lows generated from operating activities 5,580,385 7.075.056
Financding activities
Proceeds from units issued 280,090 100,000
Repurchase of unils (6.065,286) (9,144,330)
Cash Mows used in fMinancdng activities (5,785,196) (9,044 330)
Met decrease in cash (204,811) (1.969,274)
Cash at beginning of the year 625113 2,594,387
Cash at end of the year 420,302 625,113
Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 1,092,368 1.420.715
Interest paid 421) (5)

The accompanving rotes form an infegral pan of these financial statements.
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Tolkds Mirine CAT Bond Fud
Fimancial state panby
August 31, 2022

MNotes to financial statements
1 Domicile and activities

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a senes-irust of Credil Suisse Universal
Trust (Caymany IT (the “Trst" ). The Trus is an exempted unit trost registered under Section 74
of the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013 and registered
under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013, The
Series Trust was established on August 15, 2017 and commenced operations on September 28,
2017. The address of its registered office is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY'1-
o005, Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is o seek to provide investors with income gains
through investing mainly in catastrophe bonds ("CAT Bonds™). In addition, the Series Trust can
invest in insurance linked securities other than CAT Bonds, insurance derivatives linked bonds
and cash and money market securities (together with CAT Bonds, the “debt instmuments™), CAT
Bonds are debt instruments that transfer the risk of catastrophic events from entities such as
insurance companies, feinsurance companies, corporalions amd goverments to the capital
markets. Investors receive a risk premium in the form of a yvield in exchange for bearing the risk
of losses from pre-defined natural and non-natural catastrophic events, such as earthquakes,
windstorms, mortality and other catastrophe related events. The principal amount of any given
CAT Bond will be potentially rednced {and subject to partial or, in some cases, total loss) upon
the ocowrrence of an event (o which the CAT Bond 1s contractually linked,

It iz expected that the assets of the Series Trust will mainly be denominated in (but not limdted to)
currencies such as US Dollars and Euro. Where practicable, the Investment Manager seeks to
hedge the currency exposiure of assets attributable to a Class and denominated in currencies other
than the currency of denomination of that Class with the currency of denomination of that Class.
The Investment Manager generally can use spot contracts, forward foreign exchange contracts
and non-deliverable forwards {inchuding cross forward foreign exchange contracts) (together, the
“Currency Forwards™ ) in order to attempt 1o hedge against currency Auctuations,

The Senes Trust has 2 classes of units: USD Semi-Anmual Distribtion Class Units (denominated
in US Dollar), and JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units (denominated in Japanese Yen)
feach a “Class"), as defined in Appendix 26 of the Offering Memorandum relating to the Trst.

Credit Suisse Mamagement (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated under the Comparies Act
(as amended) of the Cayman Islands, has been appointed as the Trust's manager, (the *Manager™)
under the Trust Deed. The Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the Trust and has the
power to issue units in different classes and’or series and to repurchase units. The Manager has
delegated all the nghis, obligations, privileges, powers, duties, tmsts and discretions vested in the
Manager by the terms of the Trust Deed with respect to the investment, management and re-
investment of the assets of the Senes Truat and responsibility for the discretionary day-to-day
investment decision-making over the portfolio of debt instruments {the "Sub-Advised Portfolio™)
and the management of the Currency Forwards (o Tobkio Marine Assef Management Co., Lid. {the
“Investment Manager™). The Investment Manager has in tum delegated responsibility for the day-
to-day investment decision making over the Sub-Advised Pontfolio to Tokio Marine Asset
Management (USA), Lid., {the " Sob-Investment Manager™).
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Tolkds Mirine CAT Bond Fud
Fimancial state panby
August 31, 2022

Notes to financial statements (continued)

1 Domicile and activities {(continued)

Credit Swisse Imemational (the “Fee Agent”) is responsible for paying cenain ongoing s
operational costs and expenses of the Seres Trust, including manager fee, auditing costs that are
not included in the andit fees and expense, annual fees payvable in respect of the Senes Trust or
the Series Trust to govemment bodies and agencies, and insurance costs (if any} {the “Ordinary

Costs™),

The Series Trust's trustee 15 Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the *Trstee™) and admanistrator is
The Bank of New York Mellon. Singapore Branch {the * Administrator” ),

2 Basis of preparation

These financial satements are prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (*[FRS").

fal Basis of measurenme nt

The financial statements have been prepared on the historcal cost basis except for financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities { Amendments to [FRS 10, [FRS 12 and [AS
27) (2012) (the amendmenis) with a date of initial application of August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment). Management concluded that the Senes Trust meets the definition of an
investment entity.

ib} Funciional and preseniafion curvency

The functional amd presentation currency of the financial gatements is the United States
Dollar (*USD™)y which reflects the fact that the Seres Trst's operstions, reporting to
umnitholder as well as settlement of the majority of fees and expenses are carried out in USD.

o} Use gf estimates and judgemenis

The preparation of financial statements in accondance with IFRS requires the Seres Trst's
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounds of assets, habilities, income and expenses, Actual resulis
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affiects both current and fbure perods,
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Tokiy Marine CAT Rond Fuid
Fimancial state panby
August 31, 2022

Notes to financial statements {continued)

2

Basis of preparation (continued)

fe) Use of estimates and judgements {continued)
Information abowt significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judzements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements are described in Notes 4 and 5.

{dl New stanedareds and inte rpretations not vet adopred
A mmmber of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for ammual periods
beginning after Seplember 1, 2021 and eardier application is permitted; however, the Series

Trust has not early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial statements,

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Series
Trmst,

fal Finencial assets and financial fabilities
{1l Recopnition
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially
on the trade date at which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument. Other financial assets and Liabilities are recognised on the date they are
originated,

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed or the
contract 15 2 denvative contract not exempled from the scope of [FRS 9,

(i) Classification
Classification of financial assets
Om indtial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured 2t amortised
cost or FVTPL. A financial asset is measured al amontised cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and 15 not designated as at FVTPL:

i} It is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect
coniraciual cash flows; and,

i) Iis comtractual terms give fse on specified dates to cash Mows that are solely
represent payments of principal and interest (SPPI).
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Tolkds Mirine CAT Bond Fud
Fimancial state pxnby

August 31, 2022
Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fap  Financial assets and financial Kabilivies (coniimed)
(i} Classiffcarion (contined)

Classiffeation of financial assets {conmtined

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL. A financial asset is
measured af fair valoe throngh profit or loss ifany of the following apply:

i) Iis contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payvments of principal and interest {SPPD) on the principal amount outstanding,

i) It ismot held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash Nows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

i} At initial recognition. it is imevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing
g0 eliminates or significantly reduces a measwrement of recogmition INconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and lesses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPL the Series Trost considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
containg a contractual ferm that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Senes
Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash Qows,

- leverage fieatures,

- prepayment and extension features,

= terms that limat the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assels (e.g. non-reconrse
features); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models;
- Held-to-collect business model; this includes cash, interest receivable, unsettled trades

receivable and other assets, These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flows,
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Tolkds Mirdne CAT Rond Fud
Fimancial state pxnby

August 31, 2022
Notes to financial statements {continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fa} Financial assets and financial fiabilives (contimsed)
{i) Classification {contined)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

- Other business model: this includes investment in debt instruments and derivative
financial instruments. These financial assets are managed and their performance is
evalusted, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the oljective of the business model in which a financial asset
is held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business

is managed, incloding:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows throngh the sale of the assets;

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model § and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fadr value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows eollected and

= the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in pror periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about fisture sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third paties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are nod considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trst's
contiming recognition of the assets.

The Series Trust classified financial assets into the following categories:

- Financial assets designated at FVTPL
o Investment in debd instroments
o Demvative financial instriments

- Financial assets at amortised cost
o Cash, interest receivable and other assets. These are non-denvative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in the cument
market,

116/214



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tolkds Mirine CAT Rond Fud
Fimancial state panby
August 31, 2022

Notes to financial statements {continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fa}  Financfal assets and financ iaf labilities fcontimeed)
{i) Classification {continued)
Classification of financial liabilitie s
The Series Trust classified financial liabilities into the following categones:

- Financial labilities at held-for-trading
o Denvative financial instruments

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost
o Accmed expenses

(i) Measurement

Financial assets and financial halalities ot far value through profit or loss are measured
initially at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. Financial assets and financial liabilities not at fair value throngh profit or loss are
measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acguisition or issue.,

Subsequent to initial recogmtion, all financial assets and Anancial habilities classified at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes in their fair valoe
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value throngh profit or loss are
carned at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses,
if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate
nature of these instruments.

“Fair value™ is the prce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants &t the measurement date,
When available, the Senies Trust measures the fair value of an instroment using quoted
prices in an active market for that instroment, A market s regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regulady available and represent actual and regolarly occurring
market ransactions on an am’s length basis. Ifa market for a Gnancial instruoment is not
active, the Series Trust establishes fair value using a valuation technique agreed by the
Trustee. Valwation techmigques include using recent amn's length transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties {if available), reference to the current fair value of other
ingtruments that are substantially the same and other pricing models. Alternatively the
fair value may be determined using reputable pricing sources (such as pricing agencies)
of indicative prices from bond/debt market makers, Broker quotes as obtained from the
pricing sources may be indicative and not executable or binding, The Series Trust would
exercise judgment and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used.
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Notes to financial statements {continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fa}  Financfal assets and financ iaf labilities fcontimeed)
{iif} Measrement (continued)

Realised gains or losses on sale of debt instruments are calculated using the weighted
average cost method. The unrealised gains or losses represent the difference between the
carrying amount of a fnancial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period or
transaction price when purchased and its camying amount at the end of the period.
Feealized and unrealised gaing or losses on investments are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income.

{ivi Trvestment in debt instrments

The Seres Trust holds investments in CAT Bonds whose prices are govemed by a
specific pricing methodology following the Series Trust's offering docwments. The CAT
Bomds® valuation is based solely on the prices received from 4 brokers: Swiss Re Capital
Markets, Aon Securities Inc., Willis Towers Watson Securities and GC Securities, The
CAT Bonds® price is calculated based on the available brokers' average mid-price, which
i derived by averaging their bid and ask prices. Inthe case where the tolal divergence of
average ask price and average bid price against average mid-price equals or exceeds 5%,
such bond will be valued using the average bid price,

fvi fvesiment in derivative finaneial instrmes

The Series Trust holds imvestments in derivative financial ingmments in the form of
currency forward comtracts. The fair value of the cumency forward contracts is the
exchange difference between the contract rate and the applicable forward rate.

{vil Impairment

[FES 9 requires the Series Trist to recognise loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses
(ECLYon financial assets measured at amortised cost.

As at Angust 31, 2022, the Series Trust held cash, interest receivable and other assets as
financial assets measured al amontised cost, which is not under the scope of ECL model,
Hence, the applicable of [FRS 9's impairment requirement has no signficant impact on
the Senes Trust's financial siatements,
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Notes to financial statements {continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fa} Financial assets and financial fiabilives (contimsed)
{wif) Dierecognition
The Senes Trust derccognizes a fnancial asset when the contractual rghts to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition in accordance with the requirements of [FRS 9.

The Senes Trust derecognizes a fimancial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

ibi Cash

Cash compmse amounts with onginal maturities of three months or less deposited into curmrent
accounts held at an intemational financial institution,

o} Offsetting financial instrumernis
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legal right to set
off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously. The format adopted in these financial siatements is to
present the gross amounts of the financial assets and fnancial lialalities in the statement of

financial position, while the offsetting and net amount of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are presented under Note 5 — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
el Unge itfed trades receivable

Unsettled trades receivable represemt amounts receivable for investments sold bt not yet
settled on the statement of Gnancial position date,

fel Expenses

All operating expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an
accmal basis.

it Tnterest on cash

Imterest on cash is recognised on a time-propomtionate basis using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to financial statements {continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
gt Net incomeloss firom ffnancial instruments at FVTEL

Met income from financial instroments at FVTPL includes net (loss)igain on investments in
debt ingruments, net gain on derivative financial instruments and interest income, which are
disclosed separately in the statement of comprehensive income, Net realised gain or loss from
financial instrwments at FVTPL 15 caleulated using the weighied average cost method.

Met (losspgain on investments in debt instruments comprises of all realised and unrealised
fair value changes. The realised gain or loss from financial instruments at FV TPL represents
the difference between the cost of a financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale
trade,

The unrealised gain or loss represents the difference between the camrying amount of a
financial instriament at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price ifit was purchased
in the current reporting period amd its carrving amount & the end of the reporting period.

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curencies are translated
into US Dollar amounts at the date of valustion. Purchases and sales of securities and income
and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollar amounts
om the respective dates of such transactions.

Reported net realised foreign exchange gaing or logses resulting from changes in foreign
exchange rates on investments and from other transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are included in the net gain or loss on investments and net exchange gain or less on foreign
currency transactions, respectively, in the statement of comprehensive income.

ihl Net assets aftritwiable fo the folde rs of redee mable wmnits

The Trustee stands possessed of the assets of the Series Trust in a tst fund for the Seres
Trust's unitholders subject to the provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Appendix, The
Series Trust classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equty
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. The
Series Trust has two classes of redeemable units in issue. These are the most subordinate
classes of financial instroments of the Seres Trost and the wnits rank pari passu n all matenal
respects. The two classes have identical terms and conditions cther than curreney of
denomination, the port folio assets, distnbution rates and minimum ssue size. The redeemable
umits provide the unitholders with the rght to require repurchase for cash at a value
propontionate to the unitholders’ share in the Series Trust’s net assets at each repurchase date
and also in the event of the Series Trust’s liguidation.

Due to the differing features of each class of financial instrument, the Series Trust's
redeemable wnits are classified as financial Habilities in accordance with [1AS 32, This
liability is measured a the amount which the Series Trust is obligated to pay upon repurchase,

which is based on the trading net asset value calowlated in accordance with the Series Trost's
offering documents.
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Notes to financial statements {(continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
i} Net asset value per urit

The net asset value per unit is calculated in accordance with the Master Trust Deed by
dividing the Series Trust’s net assets attributable to the holders of the redeemable units in
each class by the number of outstanding units in each class.

[ Tacation

The Series Trust is exempt from paying taxes on ils income, profits or capital gain in the
Cayman Islands. The Series Trust has received an undertaking from the Govemor in Cabinet
ofthe Cayman [elands exempting it from all local income, profit and capital taxes for a period
of 50 years from the date of establishment of the Trust. Accordingly, no provigon for income
taxes is included in these financial statements.

ik} Dystributions

Distributions  made to qualifving unitholders are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on an accrual basis.

4  Financial risk management

The Seres Trust’s investment portfolio comprises of investment in CAT Bonds, other insurance
linked secunities and Cwrency Forwands, The Series Trust's investing activities expose it (o
warions ypes of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it
invests, The most important types of financial fisks to which the Series Trust are exposed to are
market nsk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The nature and extent of the financial instruments
outstanding at the statement of financial position date and the risk management policies employed
by the Series Trust are discussed below:

fal Market risk

Market nisk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes price risk. cumrency
risk and interest rate risk.

The Senes Trust's strategy on the management of investment nsk is driven by its investment
objective and investment restrictions stated out in g offenng documents, The Series Trst
seeks to provide investors with income gains through investing mainly in CAT Bonds
amongst other insurance linked securities. In selecting the Seres Trust's portfolio of
investments, the Sub-Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

* s analysis of CAT Bonds and the related markets (including, without limitation, the
trend of CAT Bonds, the reinsurance market and investment trends in that sectory

+  The risk charactenzation (including, withowt limitation, carthquake and harricane) of
each CAT Bond, and
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fab Mavke! risk {comtinued
»  The region and spread level of each CAT Bond.

In addition to the above factors, the Sub-Investment Manager, as far as possible, manages the
debt instruments s0 as not to invest in CAT Bonds having Japanese relevant risk.

The Sob-Investment Manager seeks to diversify the type of perils or the geographical focus
of the CAT Bonds it invesis in for the account of the Series Trust taking into account the type
of perils and’or the geographical focus of overall market of the CAT Bonds. The CAT Bonds
to which the Series Trust may gain exposure through direct investment are generally
unleveraged stroctured notes which are issued by special purpose vehicles (“SPV™"), The
relevant SPV assumes the risk of ocourrence of defined events and fully funds its exposure to
such risks through the issue of CAT Bonds to collateralize and directly pass on the dsk
generated from entering into risk transfer contracts with a sponsor.

The Investment Manager seeks to hedge foreign exchange rate nsk for Unitholders by
entering into the following Cumency Forwards:

# In relation to the USD Semd-Anmal Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a drategy designed to hedge the USD Semi- Annual Distribution Class Units'
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between USD (in which the USD Semi-Annual
Dastribution Class Umnits are denominated) and cumencies other than U S0,

* In relation to the JPY Semi-Annual Distobution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedge the JPY Semi-Anmial Distrbution Class Units’
exposure (o foreign exchange fluctuations between JPY (in which the JPY Semi-Axnmual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than JPY,

The Sub-Investment Manager tracks the difference of the CAT Bonds' risk charactenstics
against a reference index on a monthly basis. The benchmark index that the Sub-Investment
Manager uses is Swiss Re Global Cat Bond Performance Index Total Returmn

The Sub-Investment Manager manages the investments of the Senes Trst in accordance with
the imvestment objectives and strategies of the Series Trust, making sure that necessary and
econorically rational steps are taken o prevent the Senes Tmst's assets from being wsed or
invested in violation of the investment restrictions of the Series Trust. The Investment
Mangger carties oul investment management activities in accordance with intemally prepared
and periodically wpdated investment guidelines. The Manager advizes the Trustee of any
investment management decisions or other investment management activities required a5 a
result of occurrences or circumstances owtside of the ordinary course of business,
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Price nsk is the risk that the value of the investmend will Auctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether cansed by factors specific to an individual invedment or its

issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

As the Series Trust's investmenis are camied at fair value with fair value changes
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions
will directly affect the net assets attribitable to the holders of redeemable units and

change in net assets attributable 1o the holders of redeemable undts,

The Series Trust's investments, which are mainly CAT Bonds, are issued as floating rate
securities, in which the investor receives a set coupon spread over an index {or retum on
high-quality collateral, which 15 typically invested in short-term money market funds).
The index (or collateral retum) resets periodically based on the prevailing short4emm
interest rates, CAT Bonds® price i inversely related to the spread achieved by investors,
which is a function of modelled expected loss and other market factors, such as peril zone,

perceptions of risk, markel trends, economic turmoil, e,

The following table sets out the concentration of debt instruments held by the Series

Trust as at August 31, 2022 and August 31, 2021,

August 31, 2022

Market value %% Hol dings
UsD
Country*
United Kingdom 247497 2.28
Ireland 500,299 4.60
Bermuda 8.163,945 75.05
Cayman [slands 1,227,524 11.28
Singapore T38.549 6,749
Total 10,377,814 100,14
= The country classification is based on country of incovporation,
19
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fay Mavke! rish {comtinued

{1l Price risk

Aungust 31, 2021

Country*
United Kingdom
Ireland
Bermuda
Cayman Islands
Singapore

Other

Total
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Market value %o Hol dings
UsD

1016640 558
891051 4.89
14,069,368 77.20
1491874 818
502,800 2.76
252,912 1.39
18,225,145 100,00

= The coumtry classification i bared on country of imcorporation.

In general, there 15 a concentration of specific catastrophe risks in specific regions such as
huricanes in the Umted States, which represenis a lngh portion of the overall nsk of
CAT Bonds. Therefore, in the case of occurrence of these events, the price of these CAT
Bomds may significantly decrease and the Series Trust may significantly incur losses.

The Series Trust’s investments are concentrated in the following perils:

August 31, 2022

Peril
Multi-perl
Eanthdimke
Flood
Pandemic
Wind
Total

Market value %o Holdings

UsD
5,379,204 4945
1.734,764 15.95
472,125 4.34
739,575 6.80
2.552.056 2346
10,877,814 1000
20
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fab Mavie! risk {comtinued

{1} Price pisk (continued)

August 31, 2021
Market value %o Holdings

UsD

Peril

Multi-perl 10,702,301 38.72
Earthquake 3,604,446 19.78
Flood 486,978 2487
Pandemic 990,691 54
Wind 2.191.648 12.02
Wildfire 249,081 1.37
Total 18,225,145 100,00

The Series Trust mainly invests in CAT Bonds in accordance with the investment policy
of the Senes Trst. The nsk management framework that the Sub-Investment Manager
applies to the Series Trust consists of three risk monitoring activities, which are (1) Daily
momboring of any single CAT Bond's weightage not to exceed 10% of the latest net asset
value of the Series Tmst; (2) Daily monitoring of any single bond issuer's weightage not
to exceed 353% of the latest nel asset value of the Senes Trust; and (3) Monthly
calculation of 194 annual Value at Risk indicator (VaR ).

As at August 31, 2022, the 1% ammual VaR of the Series Trust is USD 4,214,762 (2021:
LSO 61126473, which represents the maamum loss @l occurrence probability once

every 100 vears.

In recent years, a concentration of sponsors (such as insurance companies and
counterpanties of re-insurance contracts) and issuers has developed in the CAT Bond, As
a result of such concentrated exposure, the Series Trust may incur greater losses than a
diversified fund which invests in a wider range of sectors and issuers as well as a result of
entire or partial losses of the principal of the CAT Bonds due to the ocourrence of natural
catastrophes.

Mo debt instmoment and issuer exceeded 10% and 35% respectively of the net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units at August 31, 2022 (2021 nil ).

21
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fab Mavke! risk {comtinued
{if} Fretere st rate visk

The Series Trust's imterest-bearing financial assets and labilities expose it o nsks
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on its financial position and cash flows. In general, the interest rate risk of fixed income
securities is higher than floating income securities. Therefore, the value of fixed income
secunties will be more subject to decline than that of fAoating income securifies because
of rise of inderest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of the Senes Trust is
likely to decrease. A nomanal inferest rate can be described as the swm of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate.

Fixed income securities and floating income securities with longer durations tend to be
more sensitive to changes in inferest rates, usually making them more volatile than
securities with shorter durations.

In general, CAT Bonds are usually issued as floating income securities, which are less
sensitive 1o changes in interest rates, as the coupon is pantially linked to changes in the
interest mate. However, the residmal maturities of the underdying money market
ingruments generally canse some mincr interest rate nsk.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fab Mavie! risk {comtinued
{#i} Imterest rate visk {cominued)
L thas Mare than R R
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4

Financial risk management (continued)
fap Mavke! risk {comtinued
{0} fnrerest rate visk {contfuwed
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The volatility of interest rates movement for the curment period is derved from a change
of 25 basis poinis (“bps™) in inferest rates at the statement of financial position date. This

analysis assiwmes that all the other variables remain constant.

Effect on net assets of a
change in interest rates

15 bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
USD UsD
August 31, 2022
Met impact (0 net assels aitnbotable to
unitholders (2.719) 2,719

Effect on net assets of a
change in interest rates

X5 bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
USD USD
August 31, 2021
Met impact to net assets atnbatable to
umitholders {4,5546) 4,556

The duration for the debt instruments held as of Aungust 31, 2022 45 0.1 years {2021: 0.1
years).

The Series Trud's exposure to cash-flow interest rate nisk by financial assets and
habilities comprises pnmanly of cash, which are held af variable shor-lerm market
interest rates, The impact of changes in market interest rates on these balances is not
significant to the Series Tnst.

(i) Currency risk

The Series Trust may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions
denominated in cumrencies other than its functional cwrency, Consequently, the Series
Trust is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its functional currency relative o other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
portion of the Series Trust’s assets or labilities denominated in currencies including its
functional currency, U8 Dollar.
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{iii) Crrrency rizk (continued)
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The following table sets out the Series Trust's tofal exposure to foreign currency risk in
US Dollar equivalent at August 31, 2022 and August 31, 2021

Augis 31, 2022

Assels

Cash

Irreestrnent in debt mnstmements, at far value
Infered recem ible

Total assets

Linbilities

Accrued expenses

Total linbilitdes (exc h.l.rllng et mswrts afiributab ke to
the holders of redemmnble umits)

Forward foreign sxdhangs contracts

Total net exposire

Auw.lnm,!ﬂ!l

Aty
Cazh

Irwestmment in debl matrements, o fair valus
Irered recem able

Tutn] nesets

Liabiliies

Actrued expentes

Tial Habiliies (exe ..I:lﬂhg el aSsE s arrbutab ke
the hokers of redeemalsle units)

Forvard foreign exchange contracts

Total net exposure

JEY EUER Total

TS 5D UsD

490 109 99

: 00,269 500,299

: 7 547 2.547

450 502,953 303,445

6,035,773 (503,270) 5,536,503
—02 g9 smoou

JEY EUR Total

TSD USD UsD

3,565 4,207 6772

: 1,189,107 1,169,107

3 §.450 2450

3585 1700 764 1,208, 395

10,662 857 1,055,106 GAT3T50

10,671,432 7658 10,675,080

Amonnts in the above tables are based on the carrying valne of assets and liabilities and
the notional value of forward foreign exchange contracts.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fab Mavke! risk {comtinued
{1ii) Crrvency rizk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The net exposure to foreign currency risk of the monetary assets and liabilities at August
31, 2022 was USD 6,039,948 (2021: USD 10,67%,080). At August 31, 2022, had the US
Dollar strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with other vanables held constant,
nel assets altributable to the holders of redeemable units and change in net assels
attributable 1o the holders of redeemable units per the fatement of comprehensive
income would have decreased by USD 301,997 (2021: USD 533,954). A 5% weakening
of the US Dollar against the above cumrencies would have resulied in an equal bt
opposite effect on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

il Credit risk

Credit sk is the nisk that counterparty 1o a financial indrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commutment that it has entered into with the Senes Trost, The camving amounts
of financial assets best represemt the maximum credit risk exposure at the statement of
financial position date.

The TAT bonds in which the assets of the Series Trust are invested may be subject to the risk
that the principal or interest of such instruments may not be paid. Adverse changes in the
financial condition of the msuer may impair the abdlity of the 1ssuer to make payments of
interest and principal. The inability {or perceived inability) of isseers to make timely
payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of
the Series Trust,

In particular, the price of CAT Bonds may significantly decrease as a result of a CAT bond
issner's defanlts or the possibility of its defaults due to the cccowrrence of natural catastrophes
and the spread of pestilence or exceeding trigger points defined in the bond's terms.

Credit risk is mitigated by undenaking transactions with an approved broker and other
reputable financial institutions, The Series Trust's financial assets are also held in custody
with established and approved counterparties. All transactions in listed securties are
settled/paid for npon delivery wsing an approved broker. Payment is made on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet
its obligation. The Series Trust determines concentration risk in relation to exposure to

individual counterparties.
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Substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust are held by the Custodian, Bankruplcy or
insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Series Trust's rights with respect to investments
and cash and cash equivalents held by the Custedian 1o be delayed or limited. The Series
Trust momitors s msk by momtonng the credit quality and FAnancial positions of the

Custodian.

The table below summarizes the Moody's credit rating of banks amd custodians in which the
Series Trust's assels are held as at Augnst 31, 2022 and Aungust 31, 2021,

August 31, 2022

Bank
The Bank of New York Mellon (Mondy*s)

Custodian
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody"s)

. ies of il derivatin
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody ")

August 31, 2021

Bank
The Bank of Mew York Mellon (Moody"s)

Custodian
The Bank of Mew Yaork Mellon (Moodys)

: ies of fi il derivatio
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody"s)

Fair value Credit rating
UsD
420,302 Al
10,877,814 Al
8152 Al
Fair value Credil rating
UsD
625,113 Al
18,225,145 Al
46,328 Al
27
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Notes to financial statements {continued)

4 Financial risk management {continued)

fe) Liquidity risk

Investment of the Series Trust's assets in relatively illiquid securities may restrict the ability
of the Manager (o dispose of the Series Trust's investments al a price and time that it wishes
to do 0. Futhermore, resale of such investments may at times be limited by contractual
provisions, which may itself have an impact on the value of such investments. It is also
possible that an exchange may suspend trading in a panticular instrument or contract, order
immediate hqudation and settlement of a particular instroment or contract or order that
trading in a particular instrument or contract be conducted for liquidation only. The risk of
illiquidity also arises in the case of over-the-commter transactions.  There may be no regulated
market in such instruments or contracts, and the bid and offer prices will likely be established
solely by dealers in these instruments or contracts.  Investment in non-marketable securitics
carries liquidity risk. In addition, such securities are difficult to value, and the issuers of such
securities are not always subject to the mles of a regulated market for the protection of
investors.

In general CAT Bonds have low liguidity and limited market participants and the market
prce of CAT Bonds in the secondary market may be highly volatile. Therefore, the sale
prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted to the preceding prices of these CAT
Bonds, Furthermore, some CAT Bonds may not have a secondary market and it may be
necessary to find buyers for these CAT Bonds in over4he-counter transactions. In such case,
the sale prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted the preceding prices of these
CAT Bonds and, as a result, the Series Trust may significantly incur losses.

Furthermore, in case the Senes Trust receives substantial subscriptions in a short period of
time and cannot identify sufficient CAT Bonds to invest in while complying with the
investment restrictions, the Series Trost may be required to temporarily hold substantial
amount of cash. As a result, the Unitholders exposure to CAT Bonds will be diluted.

In addition, the Series Trust may suspend andfor cancel the repurchase and/or subscription of
umits of any class of umits in significant circumstances such as the cocwrrence of significantly
catastrophes to be in the best interests of Unitholders.

Financial liabilities other than net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units have
residual contractual maturities of less than three months,

(i Chther 1sks
Volatility risk
The prices of derivative instrumenis are highly wvolatile. Prnce movements of forward
contracts, are influenced by, among other things, interest rates, changing supply and demand

relationships, trade, fiscal, monetary and exchange control programmes and policies of
governments, and mational and international political and economic events and policies.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
Pt Chher Fisks (comntimied)
VFolatility visk {comtinued)

In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain
markets, paticularly markets in currencies and interest rate related filures and options. Such
intervention often is intended directly to mfluence pnces and may, together with other factors,
cause all of such markets to move rapidly in the same direction because of, among other
thirgs, interest rate fluctuations.

Technigues and instruments risk

The wse of techniques and instruments also involves certain special risks, including (i)
dependence on the ability to predict movements in the prices of investments being hedged
and movements in interest rates, (i) imperfect comelation between the hedzing instruments
and the investments or market sectors being hedged, (iii) the fact that skills needed 10 use
these instruments are different from those needed o select investments, and (iv) possible
impediments to effective portfolio management or the ability to meet repurchase requests.

Early terminarion of the Series Trust

Although the final repurchase day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the
final repurchase day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event oceur.

Unless the Series Trust is terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the
offering docwments, the units will be compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any
ofthe fallowing:

{i) The net asset value on any valuation day on or after 1 July 2022 is USD 10,000,000 or less,
and the Manager determanes that all unats should be compulsorily repurchased: or

(it} The Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily
repurchased. (each a “Compulsory Repurchase Event™)
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Notes to financial statements {continued)
5 Fair value measurements

The Senes Trust classifies Fair value measurement using a far value loerarchy that reflects the
gignificance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

«  Coted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (Level 1),

# Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2).

*  Inpuds for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e, unobsenvable
inpuis) (Lewvel 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in itz entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entirety, IF a fair value measurement wses observable inputs that
require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Lewvel 3
measirement, Assessing the significance of a pamticular inpat 1o the far value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Series
Trust. The Series Trust considers observable data to be market data that is readily available,
regularly distribmted or wpdated, reliable and verifiable, not propoetary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Finanetal instruments measured o fofr valne firough profif or loes
The table below summarizes the hnancial ingmments measured a1 far value through profit or

loss at August 31, 2022 and August 31, 2021 by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurement is categorised:

Level 1 Lawvel 2 Level 3 Total
August 31, 2022 UsD Ush Ush ush
Firgmncial cxsel o foir velue
thrarigh profit or focs
Imvestment in debt instruments - 10,877 814 - 10,877,814
Derivative financial matruments = 8152 = 8,152
10,885, 966 - T
Finemecical liabifities e fir value
thronigh profii or loss
Derivative financial instruments - (177.061) - (177.061)
- {177,061 . (177,061
30
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5 Fair value measurements (continued)
Financial fnstrumernts measyred of fafr value through profit or loss {continged)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
August 31, 2021 usn UsD ush ush
Fingerc kel coiger of feir veluwe
threnighh profii or loss
Investment in debt nstrments A 18,225,145 - 18,225,145
Derivative fimancial mstrumentz - 46,328 - 46,328
- 18271473 - 18,271,473
Firemicledl Ferliifities ent feir vediie
threnigh prafit or loss
Derivative financial instruments - {7.722) 2 (7,723
s (7.720) : (7,727

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valned
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or altermative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within level 2. These include investment in CAT Bonds and
currency forwards.

The investment in CAT Bonds is valued in accordance with the policies descnbed in Mote
IaWiv). The price of the CAT Bonds is denved from the 4 brokers” bid and asks prices. These
brokers are main market makers in the CAT Bonds market, and they calculate their prices based
on CAT Bonds transaction prices that are available and open to the public, using their own
pricing model. If there is no transaction available, the brokers calculate the bond price from the
market data of similar bond. There is sufficient information available to measure fair values of the
bonds based on observable market inputs. However, it is possible that the estimated values may
differ significantly from the amount that might ultimately be realised in the near term and the
difference could be material,

Financial fnstrioments pol measured of fair value through profif or los

The financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss include:

(i) Cash, imterest receivable, other assels and accrued expenses. These are short-emm
financial assets and financial liabilities whose cammying amounts approximate fair value,
because of their shor-lerm nature,

(i) Met assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units. The Series Trust routinely
repurchases and issues the redeemable units at the amount equal to the proportionate
share of net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase, calenlated on a basis
congistent with that used in these financial gatements. Accordingly, the carrying amount
of net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units approximates their fair value.
The units are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

31
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Notes to financial statements {continued)

5 Fair value measurements (continued)
Derivarive financial fnstranents

The Seres Trust enters into currency forward coniracts, A currency forward contract 15 an
agreement between two parties to buy or sell a cumrency at a specified price, at a specified
quantity and on a specified future date. At inception, there is no exchange of principal amounts
and the net receivable or payable position is settled on maturity. Currency forwards are used to
control and hedge foreign exchange risk attributable to JPY Semi- Anmual Distribadion Class and
USE Semi-Annual Distribution Class.

The following currency forward contracts were outstanding at the reporting date:

August 31, 2022
No. of Receivable Favable Fair Value (net)
Maturity date contracts UsD UsD UsD
November 14, 2022 2 8,152 (177,061) (168,909)
Total 8,152 {177.061) { 168,900

August 31, 2021
No. aof Receivable Favable Fair Value (net)
Maturity date contracis UsD UsD UsD
MNovember 12, 2021 3 46,328 (7,722) 38,606
Total 46,328 (7.722) 38,606

The cwrencies purchased and sold in the cumency forward comtracts inclwded: United States
Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen, which are in line with the investment objective of the Series
Trust.

The following table sets out the notional exposures on the currency forward contracts.

Aungust 31, 2022 Falr value Nodenal value
UsD UsD

Derivative assets

Curreney forward contmcts 8142 503,270

Derfvative liabhiHtdes
Currency forward contracts (17T 061} (8, 0k 7733
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

S Fair value measurements (continued)

Derfvative financial nstruments {continued)

Aungnst 31, 2021 Fair value Notional value
UsD UsD

Drerivative asseis

Currency forward contracis 46,328 1,07 1,800,000

Derivative liabilities

Currency forward contmcts [y (1,23 3

Offsetifng fInancial assels and fAnancial Habiiitfes

The Series Trust discloses the impact of offseiting assets and liabilities represented in the
statement of financial position to enable users of the financial statement to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognised assets and
liabilities. These recognised assets and liabilities are financial instruments and dervative
ingnments thal are either subject to an enforceable master netling arangement or similar
agreement or meet the following right of setoff criteria; the amounts owed by the Seres Trust 1o
another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trost intends to set off, and the Series Trust's right
of setoff is enforceable at law.

Az of August 31, 2022, the Series Trust holds financial ingtruments and derivative instruments
that are eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and are subject 1o 2 master netting
arrangement, The master netting amangement allows the counterparty to net any collateral held on
behalf of the Series Trust or liabilities or payment obligation of the counterpany against any
liabilities ar payment obligations of Series Trust to the counterparty.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agrecments as al August 31, 2022 are as follow:

Gross wmounts af Fekted smmmes not offset in the statement
recognised Ninsnial af finamec izl position
assets presented in
the statement of Finamckl Cash collyteral Nt i
Tr;ﬂ &l posktion I strurens(a) recefredia) i
Derivative assets
Currency forward
N FALS
The Bank of Hew
York Mellon 2,152 (81520
Tuoital B,152 (8,152}

33
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Fair value measurements (continued)

Drerivative liabilities

Currmey Torward
CORFRCE

The Bank of Hew
Yok Mellon
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Tokds Miarine CAT Bord Fisd
Fisanefal statements
Awmgust 31, 2022
Offvetting franelal assets and fnancial Habilittes (continied)
Geross armourts of Felated smoumnts not offset i the statement
recognised Minan<cinl of Tinsanye bl position
Hakilinies presenied
In the statement of Financial Cash collsteral
fr:;mu:hl poskion I strurents(a} pledgedia) TN .
(1770613 8152 (163905
{177,061 2152 {168 605

Tuatal

;a) These amounis are limited to the denvative asset or liabilities balances and

accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledzed.

ity These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted off and
consequently the gross value equals the net value.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting armangements and similar
agreements as al Angnst 31, 2021 are as follow:

Derivative asets

Currency forward
ot racts

The Banle of Hew
Todk Mellon

Tuotal

Ceross mmeounts af’

recognised linemcial of Titane ial position

Fekited smoints nof ollse in the statement

nssets presented in

the satement of Finuncial Cash collateral

financia | posiin st rasends{n) recebvedia) N s
L]
46328 (7727} 31 605
ED 39,606

A4,328
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5 Fair value measurements (continued)
Offverting financial assets and financial Habiliftes {confinged)
Gross armnunts af Febited smomts not affset i the statement
recognised Tinan< il of Tiwane bl position
labilithes presmted
Ini the statement of Financial zash collateral
'E:;-u: Ial position st e} plrdgrdia} Met armount
Deerivative liabilies
Curremcy forward
Ctracs
TheBank of Hew
Yo Mellon 7. 7223 TI2E
Totsl (7,722 1182

tp These amounts are limited to the dedwvative asset or liabilities balances and

accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledged.

¢4y These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted off and
comsequently the gross value equals the net value,

6 Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met {loss) / income from financial instruments at FVTPL consists of the following:

Interest income

Met realised (loss) on debt mstroments at far value

through profit or loss

Met unrealised (loss)pgain on debt instroments at fair

value throngh profit or loss

Met realized (loss) on denvative financial instrument at

fair value throngh profit or loss

Met unreahised (losspgain on denvative financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Net (loss) / income from finandal instruments at

FVTPL
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For the year For the year
ended August ended Augnst
31, 2022 31, 2021
UsSD UsD
1047, 595 1,372,337
{89.234) {1,005,218)
(164,637} 1,011,841
(1,643.966) {55,259)
[(207.513) 165,000
(1,057.757) 1,488,701
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7 MNet assets attributable to the holder of redecmable units

The movements in the number of units issued and fully paid are as follows;

Issued and Tully pald

JPY Semi-Annual

USD Semi-Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class

(units) {units)

Balance at Augunst 31, 2021 115,580.403 TE6,398.924
[sgue of units 2.4357M 9.460,738
Repurchase of units (3,748.37H (312,289.83%)
Balance at August 31, 2022 83.267.752 484,069 821

Issued and fully pald

JPY Semil-Annual

USD Semi-Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class

{units) (umits)

Balance at Auaust 31, 2020 183,065,051 1.056, 755478
[zsue of nnits - 9.699.321
Repurchase of units (67, 484.648) (279,555.875)
Balance at August 31, 2021 115.530.403 TE6G. 898 924

In respect of the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Umnits for the initial offer period, the
minimm initial subscription is 10,000 units and thereafter in further one unit increments, For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is USD 100,000 and thereafter in
fiurther USD 001 increments.

In mespect of the JPY Semi-Anmual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
mimimom imtal subscription 15 1,000 wnits and thereafter in further one wit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the mindmum mitial subscrption is JTPY 10,000 000 and thereafter in
further JPY 1 increments.

The issue price is USD 10.00 per unit in respect of USD Semi-Annual Disnibution Class Units
and JPY 10,000 per umt in respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distrbution Class Units,

After the imtial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription day at the relevant subscription price. The subscription price shall be, in respect of
each unit purchased of a class of units on any dealing day, an amount equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units as at the valuation point on the valuation day immediately
preceding such dealing day.

36
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Nos to financial statements {(continued)

7 MNet assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units (continued)

Investors wishing (o sobmt wmis of a class of wuts for repurchase on a repurchase dayv musi
submit a repurchase notice to the Admindstrator by no later than 6.00 pom. (Tolyo time) on the
repurchase notice day which immediately precedes such repurchase day or such other time or
times on such day or days as the Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine.

A repurchase day shall be the third business day of each month on which no Series Trust
termunation dismption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time
to time determine in respect of the Series Trust or a class of units,

The repurchase notice day shall be the 10th calendar day of each month, or, if such day is not a
business day, the immediately following business day, or such other date or dates as the Manager
may determine.

Unitholders will be able to receive an amount in respect of each unit of a class of units
repurchased on any repurchase day pror (o the final repurchase day equal to the net asset value
per umit of such class of units calculated as al the valuation point on the valuation day
immediately preceding such repurchase day as may be adjusted pursnant to the swing pricing
adjustment.

In the event that repurchase notices representing 10%% or more of all issued wnits of a class of
units have been received or the Manager and Trustee determine that the hqudation of the
investments of the Series Trust would not be practicable or would be prejudicial to unitholders,
the Manager, in consultation with the Trestee, may elect to postpone a wnitholders repurc hase, in
whole or in pan, in such manner as the Manager may determine.

Y stribu fons

The Manager may, following consultation with the Investment Manager, determine that
dignbutions be payable in respect of each class of umits on a semi-annual basis on each
digtribution declaration date, taking into account factors including but not limited (o the net
mvestment imcome, net realised and unrealised capital gains and capital attnbutable (o the
relevant class of units and received during the relevant digribution period.

Distributions will be made to those persons shown as the registered holders of units on the
distribution record day immediately preceding such distribution declaration date. The Manager
may, following consultation with the Investment Manager, where it deems appropriate, elect that
a distribntion be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attnbuable to the units (and
which may also be in excess of any capital gain) over a distnbution period, where it deems that
the amownt of net iwvestment income, net realised and wnreahised capital gans amnd capial
attributable to the relevant class of units received during the relevant distribution period to be
insufficient of itselfto fund that semi-annual distribution,
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Notes to financial statements {continued)
7 MNet assets attributable to the holder of redecmable units (continued)
Disiributions {continued)

The Manager may also elect that a semi-annual distribuation 15 not payable in respect of unils for a
relevant distribution peried, notwithstanding its option to use the investment principal atributable
o the units. Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not
lrmated to where it determunes n its sole discretion (hat application of the Senes Trust's
investment objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous six
months or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems, following consultation
with the Investment Manager, it appropriate to make such an election.

Upon the termination of the Series Trost, the Trostee will distribate to the existing umitholders in
proportion to the umits held by them, all cash proceeds denved from the realization of the assets
of the Series Trust, The Trostee may retain the necessary cash proceeds for provision for all costs,
debts, liabilities, charges, expenses, claims and demands properly incumed or made by the
Trustee and whether or not incurred or made in connection with or arising out of the termination.

Durng the vear ended August 31, 2022, there were distributions of USD 577440 (2021: USD
429,714) ta the holders of redeemable urits.

8 Related party transactions

Parties are conadered 1o be related of one paty has the abidity to control the other party or
exercise significant influgnce over the other paty in making financial or operational decisions.

Credit Suisse Intemational acts in capacity as Fee Agent of the Series Tmst, and represents a
related party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence and by vinue of common
ownership by their nltimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Fee Agent is entitled
bo receive a Fee Agent fee of 0,12% per annum of the net asset value accried on a daily basis and
calculated as at each valuation day out of the assets of the Series Trust. Total Fee Agent fee for
the year amounted to USD 19426 (2021 USD 25977) with USD 2,769 (2021: USD 3,883)
outstanding accrued fees payable to the Fee Azent at the end of the year.

The Manager is a related party by vinue of its power to issue units under the Series Trust Deed
and by virtue of common ewnership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG.

The Managzer is entitled to receive ont of the fee agent fee a management fee of USD 5,000 per
anmum pavable monthly in arears, paid by the Fee Agent,

38
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Notes to financial statements {continued)

8 Related party transactions {continued)

The Investment Manager is a related party by virtue of its responsibility for the discretionary day-
to-day investment decision-making responsibility over the Sub-Advised Portfolio and the
management of the Curmency Forwards. which is delegated by the Manager by the terms of the
Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of
0.70%% per anmum of the net asset value accrued on a daly basiz, calculated as at each valuation
day and payable quarterly in arrears owt of the assets of the Series Trust. Total Investment
Manager fee for the vear amounted to USD 113,333 (2021 USD 151,499 with USD 16,152
(2021: USD 22,653 owstanding accmed fees payable to the Investment Manager at the end of
the vear,

The Sub-Investment Manager 15 a related pany by virue of its responsibality for the day4o-day
imvestment decision-making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio; which 15 firther delegated by the
Investment Manager by the terms of the Sub-Investment Management Agreement. The Sub-
Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.50%% per annum of the net asset value accrued
on @ daily basis, calenlated on each valuation day and paid by the Investment Manager out of the
investment manager fees. Total Sub-Investment Manager fee for the year amounted to USD
80,952 (2021: USD 108,214) with USD 11,537 (2021: USD 16,181) outstanding accrued fees
payable to the Sub-Investment Manager at the end of the year,

The Trustee is a related pany by virtue its affiliation with the Series Trust due to ils possession of
complete apthority over the operations and management of the Series Trust. The Trustee is
entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum payable anoually in advance out
of the assets of the Series Trust. The Trustee is also reimbursed out of the assets of the Series
Trust for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of i dotigs.

Below table present breakup of accroed expenses

Accrued Expenses Amount  Amount
USD UsD

2022 2021

Accrued Andit Fee 26,590 3977
Accmed Investment Management Fee 16,152 22653
Accmed Admimistration Fee 151 3,520
Accrued Trustees Fee 6,658 -
Accrued Distritntion Fee 6,436 19417
Accmued Share Class Charge 3,398 1,699
Accrued Fee Agent Fee 2,769 3883
Accred Custody Fee 2,038 20639
Accrued Transfer Agent Fixed Expense 1427 714
Accrued Agent Member Company Fee 536 1,618
Total 77,346 81,520
39
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

9

Subsequent events

Subsequent to August 31, 2022, and as at December 16, 2022, the Seres Trust has no
subscriptions and recorded repurchases of USD 1,032,017 and distributions USD 79,249,

[n preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up 1o December 16, 2022, which is the date that the financial galements were
available for issue.

40
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2022 12
9,643,733.16 1,279,723,390
119,095.76 15,804,007
9,524,637.40 1,263,919,383
70,401.251
464,442 .329
9,264
9.86 1,308
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2022 12 735,000 9,753

10
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2022 12

1,628,217,323
8,638,977
13 79,709,189
75,178,180,631
565,534,460
25 148,774,822,292
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2020 2020 12 31 2021 2021
12 31
22 38
59 131
23 103
2022 12 30
132.70
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2021 2020

UsD UsD
1,541 204 16,025 2,127
1,541 204 16,025 2,127
4 1,541 204 16,025 2,127
5 210,000 27,867 220,000 29,194

4 1
211,545 28,072 236,025 31,321
6 (111,758) (14,830) (111,476) (14,793)
99,787 13,242 124,549 16,528
99,787 13,242 124,549 16,528
7

99,787 13,242 124,549 16,528
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2021 12 31

2021 2020

uSsD usD
9 1,759,688 233,511 1,643,796 218,132
10 210,863 27,982 220,970 29,323
1,970,551 261,492 1,864,766 247,454
10 223,931 29,716 217,933 28,920
223,931 29,716 217,933 28,920
11 735,000 97,535 735,000 97,535
1,011,620 134,242 911,833 121,000
1,746,620 231,776 1,646,833 218,535

1,970,551 261,492 1,864,766 247,454
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2021 12 31
usD usD usb
2021
735,000 97,535 911,833 121,000 1,646,833 218,535
99,787 13,242 99,787 13,242
12 31 735,000 97,535 1,011,620 134,242 1,746,620 231,776
2020
735,000 97,535 787,284 104,473 1,522,284 202,007
124,549 16,528 124,549 16,528

12 31 735,000 97,535 911,833 121,000 1,646,833 218,535
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

UsD UsD
99,787 13,242 124,549 16,528
4 (1,541) (204) (16,025) 2,127)
98,246 13,037 108,524 14,401
10,107 1,341 (3.543) (470)
10,107 1,341 (3.543) (470)
5,998 796 86,604 11,492
5,998 796 86,604 11,492
4 1,541 204 16,025 2,127
115,892 15,379 207,610 27,550
115,892 15,379 207,610 27,550
1,643,796 218,132 1,436,186 190,582
1,759,688 233,511 1,643,796 218,132
9 1,759,688 233,511 1,643,796 218,132
1,759,688 233,511 1,643,796 218,132
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KYl 1104

309 c/o Maples

Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands

IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB

IFRS

usD
usb
uSsD

usb
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ECL

IFRS

ECL
ECL
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2021

IFRS 16 CoviID 19

IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
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2021 2020
1,541 16,025
1,541 16,025

2021 2020

210,000 220,000
210,000 220,000
2021 2020
(1) (1,182)
(5.,272) (3,201)
(106, 485) (107,093)

(111,758) (111,476)
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2039 10 10
5,000 2020 5,000 2021 12 31
REITa
a
a
CS
us
usS
NB  MYAM
UK
AMP
a
AMP REIT

J REIT
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CAT
HOLT
PIMCO
J REIT
AHL
SBI  PICTET
usS
17 20

2021

2021 2020

1,759,688 1,643,796
1,759,688 1,643,796
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2021 2020
210,863 220,970
210,863 220,970
2021 2020
223,931 217,933
223,931 217,933
2021 2020

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2021

2021

HKD USD

2020 12 31
12

2020 12 31

HKD

usD

HKD

162/214

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)

2021

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 12 31



13

14

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

223,931 223,931 217,933 217,933
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
958,931 958,931 952,933 952,933

2021 2020
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
2021 2020
106,485 107,093
106,485 107,093

2021

12 31
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et Bty Mgt (Capman) Linfog

Fnsack satarwels dor Yap paar oo 3T Deverdns 2020

Staterment of Income for the Year Ended 31 Decamber 2021

usD

F';w 2021 2020

-lnnfm-"" -i:IEGI'I‘.G

o whih intarast income from asbucents &1
amorased sosf

TR g6

e LT LT T T T LT

16,725

1,541

Met interest income

F] 1,541 16,025

R .
by F

Sendon ioo income

Titmer revenimg

B T e et

BT T Hingoo 220,000

Nel revenues

211,545 236,025

L T e T

“Henerml, acm ristrative and other opsraling sxpensas

HATTEE AT ATE)

88,787

Operating profit before allowance and taxation A 124,548

Profit before tax

29,787 124,548

mooms tax exparee

Profit after tax

93,787 124,843

Ihe accomrpanying wwhes form an irtegal parl of these financia satements.
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Crocfl Sukse Managoment (Cayraen) Lindied

Fir I gmabrrmoe (L Mo oo wncior! 5 Docasvadns 2021

Statement of Financial Posilion as at 31 December 2021

USD Toencs 3021 2020
Pty

Cashare die frombanks T TG 068 B S 06
CHher assels "0 210,863 SO0ET0
Total assets 1,970,551 1,864,768
Liabilities I

Onner Labiities e v R 7Y - T R T [~ -
Total llabilides 223,91 217,933
Shareholders’equity =~

Swecapl Y 795000 736,000
Ratained samirgs 1,011,620 511,633
Total shareholders’ equity 1,746,620 1,646,833
Tatal liabiliies and shareholders' equity 1,970,551 1,864,766

Aporoved and author sed for issue by the beard of cirsciors on

Micolas Popavoing
Director

Credit Suizse Monogement fCayman] Limited

The accomperying notes form an integral part of these firancy! slalwmen <
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Gl Sy Managemmn! (Canny) Linfed
Fhunals sTatsm At for e wear sacied 31 Dacer ber 2221

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 Decamber 2021

Share capeel Rekained
usb earrings Tatal

Eﬂ’:l A A SRS SR SRR SR e e s EEREE NN AT IR TTEE TR TR AR S S

‘Bajanceatjanuary 735000 911,833 1846833
Prefit sor e yaar s 3,77 99 TRT

Balanee ot 31 December 735,000 1.011.620 1.746.620

i dmEawsmamEsaE

2020

_Balance at 1 Janvary 735000 787,284 1522284
Prclil “or the year — 194,545 04 540
Balance al 31 December 735,000 911,833 1,646,833

The accompanying sotes form an integral part o these fnancial statements,
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Sreil S s Managerant (apmant Lo
Fewnoa® stfemrants o e year andee 51 Dacanber 2021

Statement of Cash Flows Tor the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Uah Hiehen 2021 2020
Cash flows from gperaling activiies
Profil balgre tax for {he periad 84,167 124,648

Acjustments to reconcile net profil lo nel cash
_generated from/(used in) operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profil belore Lax
and other adjustrnents;

bl SR TSR L OO, | GSIIIE L) i V-1
Cash generated from operating acthities before

changes In operating assets and liabililies 98,246 108,524
_Net decrease/(ncrease) inoperating assets: e
COter gssels 10,107 =.hd3)
Net decrease/(increase) in operaling assels 10,107 (3,543}
Metincrease In operating liabilitles:

Givar Eabites T 5368 SAE04
MNetincrease in operating liablliles: . .......59%  B6604
Irtarast ircome received 4 1,541 “E096
Net cash generated from operating activity 115,892 207,810
Netincrease in cash and cash aquivalents 115,892 207,810
Cash ard zash equialants at the beginnlng of ynar 1,643,756 1,426,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,769,688 1,643,796
Cash ard due from Earks a 1,759,685 1,642,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of year 1,759,684 1,643,796

Tewe acoompanying noles form an imegral parl of these {nznc'al slatemams.
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Ot Spriaa fignagare! (Ceymen Linitod
Nales to Frencsl siademants for e pear anted 1 Deceriber 202!

Notes ta the financial statements
1.  Princlpal activities

Creck Susss Managsmuenl (Caymat) Lirrted (the “Compary”) is incomporated In =we Cayman Islands
with limited fbisly. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trus=s and the administration
and ranspameni of essets in tuss. Te Company's reglsteed office s o/o Maples Corporama
Sandoos | Imited, P.O. Bex 309, Jylerd House, Grand Cayman IKY1-1°0¢, Cayman lslands

2. Significant Accounting Pclicies
(a) Statement of campliance

Thase finsrclal statements have bews prepared in accodence with all appleable Imemadional
Flanclal Roporting Starcads (FHSsT, which collechive tern inchudes all asplicable indridual
Irsematioral  Firancial Repoiling Standacds, Imtematiznal Accounting Standards (MASs") and
Incerpratations ksued by Interadona Accounting Standards Board (TASET. A sumwary of the
sigrificant accounting policias adopted by the Comzany is sst out balow,

(b}  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Tha mezeLrement bzsis used i tae prepaiasoo of (e firendal statements & e historical cost basis.

Ihe preparation of “nanizl staiements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
Jucgzments, wulinales snd sssumptions -hat atfact -he application of polcies and reported amounts
of aosuls, fabililas, income and expenses. The estimates and assodated assumptions are based an
histoicn! exparience and varous other factos -hat are befieved fo be -emsonable Jnder the
clrcumstzacas, e results of which fom the bas's of making the judgements abeut carying va ues of
assele and labiftes that are net readiy apparen: from otver sources. Aciual resalts may ciffer from
those estimates,

The estimates and underying assomptions zrc mviewed on an ongeing bass.  Revisions to
ascoubing sstimates are recegnized In the percd In which the eslimate s revised i the -avision
affects only that periad, or in 11e pericd of the revision anc firlie periods f the reviz en affects Soth
carerd and futue perices.

(ch Forcign currency

fhe Company's funclional ard presentation curency 1s Unitec States Dolers TUSD"). Forelgn
curercy fransactions durry the year are translalec ma USD at tre forsign exchenge rates ulirg ot
the ransaclion dales, Monetary assets ad haolities denominated in forelgn curencies are translated
inko UED i the loreigr. exchange rates nuling af the end of the repo-ing perod. Exchange galns and
lnzees ara recognised ir the profit o loss.

Mar-monstary assets and fzailties that are moasurnd in forms oo histodeal cost n a fore g currency
are transizbed info UISD using the forsign awchange roics uling at the transoction dates. o
menetary agsets anc Rebilties dercrinated in forclgn cumences ~hat are statec al fair value are
trargiabed usirg the fansign exchange rates ruing at ihe dates t7e fair valoe vas ceramine]. Foign
curency d ffererces arsing on retranslation ars reccgn sed in profit or ks,
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ot B e Mo awweven (Cepeiway) Laraled
Nales io Francal patemaen's for the soar endod 37 Daceenbar 208!

2, Significant Accounting Policles {continuad)
{d} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from batks comprise cash al bank avd o hend with banles, and shor $zem, bighly
liguid investrents thai are eadily corweilible irto <nown amcuncs of cash ard which zre aubjest tooan
mnsignificant risk of changas in valus, heving been within th'es mo-ths of maturity ot zcquisifion,

(e) Other assets

Cther aseets are infialy recogaised at Sar wale and theres™ar steced st amorlised cost less
Expecled Credil Loss (ECLY) (revar to Note 2(g)), except whars the recabables are Interesl-fiee
loane maks o related sarties without any fieed repaymert terme ar the effed] of diszounting weuk: be
immabarial. In sucy cases, the recevables zre stated at cost less impa rment for bad and doubtiul
dabls,

(fy Provisions and contingent liabilities

Frovisions are recogalsed fer Faalities of ureeran fiming or arount when the Corsany has a legal
0 construciive ooligatian erlsing es & m=sult of 2 past evenl, i is probable that an ousfiow of ecoremic
hanefits wil be raquirad fo settle the adlgedon and a r=lable est mats cash be nade. Whers the tire
withic of money 1s mete-dal, provisions are staled 2t 1he preser: vaue of the expanditwre expactsd to
=etle the obligedon.

Whers it & not probable el an sdflow of seonemic benafits will be raquited, or the amount cannct
be st mated rellably, the obligation Is dizcksed as a eonlingent labily, vaese dhe probabilty of
utfloer of economic aensfils is nmete. Fossble oblcerons, whose existence will onby be confiemed
by the oscarrence of non occurrence of ane or mone fulure events are also discosad as conlingent
lizbil fies unlesz the probability of cutf ow o econamic benefits is remcte.

gl Impairment

The carmying amours o she Compamy's assets s reviewed at the erd of each reporting penad o
datenming whetqer there (¢ any cbjectve evidence of impaiment. If ary sush objective suiderce
exists, the assef's recoversble amount is estimated a the end of each repxling peripd. Ar
impairaent boss Is recogrised wheneves the carmang amount of an asset sxoeeds s recowsrabe
amaunt. Impalrment osses ara reccgaisad in ha profic or lcss.

Unde- IFRS 9, the impeirment raquirements zpely primardy to financial assets mensured =i amertisec
cosz. The mpalmert requiements are based or a forward-lboking axpected credt loss modal by
incormoating reasonrabls and supporase farecasts of future cconomic conditions avallable at tre
raporting dase. This requires conziderable judcement ove- how chances in economic factors affect
ECLs, which & detevnined en a prebabdity-weighled bass.

Hyl Revenue recognition
Provided that it is orobable <hal the econcm o benzfits will figw ta the Company and the reve e and
<osts, If app icable, zan be neasurec aliably, serdce fee Income is recodn S6d 14 prefn o boss wher
the lvesment managenent sendca is provided.

i Expenses

Al expenses are recognised in profit and less on a9 acoral baeks,
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Cvrci Suitoe Menageand (Saman, Limisc’
Nigeies fo P whalerrinds {oe f yaar eutea 3T Usoember S5

Significant Accounting Pelicies (continued)

Related parties

Fer the puraogas of thear financia. siaterents, & party is considerec t2 be relatad te <hs Company if:
(a  Aperson, or a clase memoer of thal pe s01's family, is related to the Corpany If that peson:
() hes cavtrol or jo'rt control over Lhe Comparey;
(1) hes siorificant 'milusnes o The Corpany; o
(i) s & memoer o the key maragemanl perscnnel of the Comoaany or the Company's
peroni.

(L) Aneniity is related o fhe Zomoany T any of tha fellawing conditions epplies:

i, The entity anc tke Company are mambers of the same group (which means tha: ezch
paend, subsiciary and fel v subsidiary Is relsded to tre others).

il One exity is an essociate or joink venfure of tha other enlily (or an assaciate o joint
vertra ef a memier of 2 group of which the other entily i a member]

i) Bothentitiss are joint ventires of #he same third sady.

(M One entry 15 a jainl vartua of & thire party and the othar entity 13 ar assosicte of the
Hhird party.

i) The enblty is 2 post-employment benedt plan far the barefit of amployess of either tha
Campany or an entity related to the Compary,

(vt The ertty & control ed or jointly confrolied by 8 person identifies © (a).

M) & pesan dertf ed in (al() has significant infLence over <1s ent'ty o is a mamber of the
kay nanagement persornel o° the entiy lor o° a parent of tha enhy).

Close members of the famlly of a pessor are those “amily members who may b2 expaded o
influsnce, o- be influsced by, that person in their dealings wil the elily.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company his apelied the following amendments for the first time for tal- anmsl reporiing percd
cammenzing © Januay 2021:
s Covid-19 - Related Rent Consessions - ammendments 10 IFRS 16, and
* ranest Halg Her cbmark Reforn - Phase 2 - amendmemz to IFRS 2, A5 38, IFRS T, IF35 4 ard
IFRS "G
The amendnonls listed above did 1o, bave a7y impsct on the amsunts recognisec in pris” pereds
ard are oot E@E-ﬂs:"tﬂ Shnﬂk:arﬂl’y abar ther curranl o lullne pariocs.

Changes in Accounting Policias

Tee |ASE las ssued a nuribar of amendments 10 IFRSs that are first effective for the curent
seccunlirg pericd of the Company. Mone of these developmerrs have hac a maonial elfe or now
the: Clompary's results and financial position for the current 22 prior seriods have been prepared o-
prasanted in Motz 20k,

Tas Cerpaty has rot appliec any new siandard or intersrciation thes is not vet cffective for -he
cument acccunting periad (Mate 15).
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Ursald Susire Maraoerent (Ciprnan) Leilfed
Mafnr 1 Franse’ sttamian's G e o ended 31 Decenbor 205

4.  Het Interest Incoma

i 2021 2020
Netinterest income

JHerest icoric on crsh £d dus from berks )
Total interest incorme ' 1,541 g

All the gbove mevest roome on nsloneals wre 3- amortisec cost,

8.  Service Fee Income

Tha priscpa ectivies of she Compary are the creation o trusts and the administration arc
manzgernent of assets i rusts.

Fevenue raprasan s ireessdmant manecement f2o income camead fron fellow subsidiany as follaws:

uso 2021 2020

_Revenues

Tuta:! FEVENUES 210,000 220,000

6. General, Administrative and Cther Operating Expenses

usD 2021 2020
_General adminlstrative and other apereting expenses. e
DRNEPHRS. v Rt o AL B
Anphlon rarnonealion {B,272) ﬁ 2010
UIrE:'urserunﬂraﬂDr “UHORAER) (07 008)
Total general administmative and other aparating sxpenses {111,758) {111,27E}

Al ot tha abewve saosndlures are payabls to e Company's Inmediate holding conpany and Ly
inariadia a bekingg compersy splfles such expareiures an bebzlf of fhe Comeoany.

7. Taxatien

Tere are ne taxes on [9come or gaits in the Cayman lslands and the Comgary has received an
undertaking from the Govamer in Courcll of the Cayman Islands examrpting i from al local income,
prodile anc capizal taxes unlil 10 Oclober 2039, Accordingly, no povision “or incomr e t3xes is nchuded
in e finncial slalermseals,

10
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oy Serss Managamant (D) Limdled
Mol o Fraolel siabimants for 8 vear snced 31 Oacerber 2020

8. Unconsolldated Struciured Entilies
Sponsanad eneonsaldated shuied eniities

The Compary considers itset the sponsa- of a sircturec entity when althar its name aposars in the
mame ol e slructured entity or n producs ssued by # or there B a gereral expectston from the
mansl [Fa the Company Is associated with the staehired entity or the Company was invoived in the
desigr o° set up of the sructured snfity and Fas a form of Involvement with the structured snlily.

The below unconsodated struchured emties are sponsered by the Company whers a fieed anmal
manzgameni fes of UST 5,000 (2020: USD 5,000) is recered bot e intersst is eld by the
Company £5 &8 31 Decomber 2021

‘Gibal KEI Ircoms Agha Fund (For Qualfied rstiutionsl iwestos Oh)
“husiralia+ | ligh Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For O mII’IM In:'.ﬁhﬁhrﬂl Irvetars Gnv)

YL L LR L R R R T mssssrmisemsnminuenmE

U REIT Premiun Fund (=or Cugliied Instiiuiiung]_ivestcrs Only), e
F‘l:'h-m -"1Ju"1r'al anH; h Dlrl:]EI"hj Eq tg A1 ha Fune : ._Fur' Gl e Tnst nianal Imvastars Orly)

r= oA .......H, sEssamas .,“", ...................................................................
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

:[i%iﬁ%{t:‘?ilbﬁgijii::::::::j.“--"-_"""'"""‘""‘""'""""'""lllfl""l'llrllI'I'Illl-+llii-l+ll|r--1..|"..-..............,...
U8 Dynamic Growih Fund

D

Japanese Goverrmet Bona 1720 Year Ladder Funs (Cor Ovaied ineli tor's, irvesters GabY°
i35 Treasury 57 Year -adder Fund (For Cusiled Insbiutional lwestos Ony.
Australia REIT Plus *

Stinsei Wond Wieg. Crouth Type (For Oualiled Ielihiind Trvesiers Orig """

* The fusids wore orminatec dadng 2021,

The Compeny has not provided financial or other supsort to unconsolidaled sliuclued e tes thak i
was not contraciually reguired o provide.

Tha Comaany doss not curentiy hewe the interdion to provds Transicl or other suppor fc
uncrsnidafod stuctred enfives thal il i net contractually required to provide,

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cazh st eash aqguivalents comprise:

uso 2021 2020
Cash and due rom banks
Cash ard due from Larks 1,755 GBE 1,648,796

‘Total cash and due from banks T Ty7s86B8 1,643.796

10. Other Assels and Other Liabilities

Ush 2021 2020
Other assats

Interest and fees moekahle 21C,B62 290,870
Total ather assels 210,883 220970

uso 2021 2020
Other liabilities

inta-est and fess payable 292 a3 17833
Tatal ather iabiliies 223,831 217,933

12
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11. Share Capital
() Authorised and issued share capital

2021 2020

No. of Ush Ne. of UsD
shares shares
Authorisad:
Crdinary shams of USD | each - 000,000 1000000 1000000 1,000,200
lasued and fully pald up:
Crdinery 57ares 730,000 733,L00 TIEL00  7E5.000

Tha holders of crd'na~y shares are anlitlad to reccive divide1ds as declarec from tine lo ime and ars
etitled 1o one vota per share at gencml restings of the Company. All ordinary shares -ank equally
with regasc to the Cempaty's residual zsscls,

(by  Capilal management

Tha Company's orimary osjectves when managing sapital am to zafagpuand the Comoany's abilly o
contings a3 a geing concern so thet it can continus o pewide retures to shareholders, By pridng
services sommensurately with the lsvel of rsk and by zecuring zeccss te finance at a rensorable
coes. A5 the Company is part of a larger group, she Cempawy's feurses of addhonal capilal and
poicies for distribution of excess captal may also be affectad by the groun’s capilal managemant
voecives. Tha Compary de” res ‘zasital’ as including all compenenta of equity.

The Cerpany's capilal struclire is reguinly mviewet anc manaced wilh due regard fo the capital
managemert practices of the grous to which te Coripany bekegs. Adjastrents are made o the
capta stuziure in light of chennas in economic conditicns afiecting the Comgany or the group, to
the exdert that these do net coaflict with the directos” fiduclary duties towards the Compary.

Thee Compmany was nct subject to exieria ly imposec capital requirements in the current period.
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to cradit, liquidsy, interest rate and “oreion curency risles arlsos in ha pormal course of the
Compaty's busimess, Thesa riss are mansgnd by the Company's finarclal management poficizs ard

@)  Credit risk

The Compeny's credit risk |s prmariy attioutable to amounts dus fron grous companies and cash at
ks, Creclit sk 15 defined as rsk that one party to 2 finandal instument will sause 4 francial lbss e
anaiher pariy by Taling To discharge an obl gaton. Maragement regulary manitors its sk axposuie o
ercire tiat ils cradic risk is kept o a minimal evel. The maximum 2xaosune 10 orecl sk is
regresenzd by 8 canying amourt of each financial asset in the ssatement of firancial positior after
deacduclig 20y impa rment allowance,

13
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Financial Risk Management and Falr Values (continued)
Lhequichty rishe

Ihe Compary’s poécy i fe regalady monkter its leuidity requirements to satisfy b5 contractual and
reasorably fermsnmable siligatiens asfhey Sl cue.

#1 31 Decemser 2021 and 2020, all of the Compearny's lvancid Babi fies, which ircludes of acditos
a3 azcrdals, are on demand o uncaled zd ae sxpected 1o be setffed batwesn three o heebe
moniks.

Interest raba sk

The Conpany s axposed to interast rae risk only to the 2xtont that - ears bark isterest on cash
and depasils. AL ¥1 MNueember 2021 and 90020, 2 change In Imerest rates would have no direct
material etfect on -he camying valie of the recogpised assets or lisbil 323 of the Company.

Forelgn cumrency risk

Tha Company is cxpesed o foreign curmency risk primarily thvauch serain fransasions which gve rse
ta payables that are derominated in Hong Kang dollars {"HHD".

Asg the HKD is pegged to the LS, “e Carmpany corsldons thel e risk of moverrents in exchance
rafes betwesn USD wre HKD to be insignificant.

Fair wilues

The cxmying amounis of the Company’s finencial inztruments eamise at a=st o* amartsed cost are
oot materlelly diffgant iom thaeir falr vahe ag at 37 Decerber 2021 and 2037,

Material Related Parly Transactions

Ir addicn to the {ransactions and balencas dscloned elawhere I tha finoncizl statemants, ike
Comrpzny antered Intn the fallowing malorial re ated narty fransastions,

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2021 31 December 2020°
Parert Fellew Tatal Parant Fellowr Tatal
Group Group

UsD Companies ‘Campanias
Assoly
Cther assets - 10ELS 210,853 - X055 290,803
Total assets —_ 210,863 210,853 - 220,883 220,863
Liabilities and
Equity
Otherlabities 2R T.LLe aves =27
Share cogital TER OO0 - 7&5,000 T36,C00 736000
Total liahiditias and
shareholdars’
equity 858,531 - 488,931 862,833 - §52,933

it TP asiegs ‘iperes hass boan reziasst ad 10 confoem o e curant peac's preyaniatior

14
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Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

Related party revenues and axpenses

2021 2020
Parent Fellovw Parent Fellow Tetal
GFM Q‘O‘H
USD Companles Companies
Revenues
Corviod 1o PEoe —.LL20000 90000 = ZX000C 990000
R st = 310,000 210,000 220,000 220,000

Remuneration of key management personnal

Remuneration of key management parsonnel (USC) 021 20240
Ehor-tzm emaloyea banefils 106,485 107 033
Tetal Remuneration of key management parscnnal 108,485 107.003

Parent and Uitimate Holding Company

At 21 December 2027, the immediate sarent of tre Company k& Cedit Suizze (Hong “ong) Lir tted,
which & ircorporatee in Heng Keng ard the uitimabe confrolling pary of the Compary is Credd
Susse Group AG, whica is noorporated in Swigerand. Credl Susse Group AG procuces financial
slatermants avallable Tor public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yel effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Certsin now accourting sterderds, amsndments lu accounling siandarcs and interpretations have
beeq pubised hal 2 not mandatory for 31 Decemiber 202 repericg perices and have nat been
ecry acopted by the Corrpany, These standads, areidments o interpretations 2re not espacied &
heve = matedal moast on the entity in the curraat or fubire repordine pencdz are on foresanshle
futare transactions.

Subsequent Evenls

Taore have osen no matters or droumslances fhat Bave zdsen ginze the end of the financial periad,
wlieh: sigrilicantly a*actsd, or may significantly affect, the operations of 172 Company, tha resutis of
thase operaticns, or the state of affairs of tha Company in fufure firaocial years.

Approval of Financial Statements

= fnancial statermers were approvec lor lssue by the boare of directers of the Company o7 10
June A3,
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2022 12 100

Intertrust N.V.

The Bank of New York Mellon

2022 11 3,500
2017 30 6,000
7,300
2022 12 405

Credit Suisse International

2022 12 113 6,600
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2500199 1990
2000 27
2006 16
Credit Suisse AG
E14 4QJ 44(0)20 7888 8888
E58DKGMJYYYJLNBC3868
1990 16
50
2023 20
1985 12
100

2017 7,909
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2022 12 50

100

702

Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

The Bank of New York Mellon,

The Bank of New York Mellon

Credit Suisse International
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1.4
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SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
+1 345 949 4800
+1 345 949 7164
www . kpmg . Ky

CAT

2022 31

IFRS 2022 31

1SA
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KPMG

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY 1-1106 Cayman Islands
Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust”), a series-trust of Credit
Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the “Trust”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at August 31,
2022, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at August 31, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the” Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal controlas management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
meateria misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal controlrelevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidenceobtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we concludethat a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

December 16, 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financia statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the* Company”), which are set out on pages 3
to 15, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,

the statement of income for the year then ended,;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
Responsibilities of Directorsfor the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

213/214



EDINETOIOOD
0000000000000000doooogdddo(eLs3s9)
o o o o o o e e e
Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinternal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2022
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